
VILLAGE OF BARTLETT 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION MINUTES 

August 12, 2024 
              

 

   
  
VILLAGE OF BARTLETT EDC MINUTES  Page 1 of 4             EDC MEETING OF AUGUST 12, 2024 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Commissioner Erickson called the regular meeting of August 12, 2024, of the Economic 
Development Commission (EDC) of the Village of Bartlett to order at 7:00 PM 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
PRESENT: Commissioners Erickson, Gorski, Lewensky, Perri, and Suffern 
 
ABSENT:    Commissioners Densford, Gudenkauf, and Kubaszko 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Economic Development Coordinator Tony Fradin, Assistant Village 
Administrator Scott Skrycki 

 
3. APPROVAL OF July 8, 2024, MEETING MINUTES 
 
Motion by Suffern, seconded by Lewensky to approve the July meeting minutes. 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
None 
 
5. LAKE STREET TIF UPDATE 
 
Mr. Fradin provided a history of working with the EDC to strategize and discuss the 
development of various commercial and industrial areas and corridors throughout the 
village for many years.  He cited Brewster Creek Business Park, Downtown, and the 
Route 59 commercial corridor as some examples. 
 
Much of the village has experienced new development or redevelopment over the past 
decades; however, the Lake Street corridor on the northern edge of our community has 
not.  It has stagnated for a variety of reasons. 
 
Mr. Fradin went on to describe how Tax Increment Financing (TIF) districts work and 
described them as the most powerful economic development tool he knows of in twenty-
four years in the profession.  The village utilizes other incentives including BEDA grants, 
sales tax sharing agreements, fee waivers, and Cook County property tax incentives, 
however, to make meaningful changes to a larger area or corridor, TIFs are the best way 
to accomplish that. 
 
Mr. Fradin described Bartlett’s two former TIFs (downtown and Bartlett Quarry/Brewster 
Creek Business Park) and two active TIFs (Route 59 & Lake Street and the Bluff City 



VILLAGE OF BARTLETT 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION MINUTES 

August 12, 2024 
              

 

   
  
VILLAGE OF BARTLETT EDC MINUTES  Page 2 of 4             EDC MEETING OF AUGUST 12, 2024 

TIF).  Per the Comptroller’s office, Illinois has nearly 1,500 TIF districts in over 500 
municipalities, including many with multiple districts. 
 
Mr. Fradin went through a slide presentation, highlighting elements of the new TIF 
including how TIFs work, an overview of the area including the boundaries, the key 
elements of this TIF, how it meets the eligibility requirements, what eligible costs are, the 
future land use plan, financial projections, and the anticipated outcomes. 
 
Commissioner Suffern asked about the School District U-46 property, and if it would be 
available for development.  Mr. Fradin responded that it had to be included for contiguity, 
it won’t be available for new development, but that the school would be eligible for TIF-
related funding for future improvements if they meet eligibility requirements. 
 
Commissioner Gorski inquired about the area east of the learning center, if that would 
become another development site.  Mr. Fradin replied that it is not the case, it is simply 
an additional PIN owned by the school district. 
 
Mr. Fradin mentioned that village staff has met with school district officials to discuss 
these issues, and that the school district is also a member of the Joint Review Board that 
is scheduled to meet this coming Friday. 
 
Commissioner Suffern asked about a parcel on the north side of Lake Street.  Mr. Fradin 
noted that it is a planned commercial area in the village, some fuel stations have looked 
at it over the years.  It is currently vacant. 
 
Commissioner Suffern asked Tony to elaborate on the rehabilitation and remediation 
estimate, and if it includes the vacant gas station.  Mr. Fradin replied that it is one of the 
properties, but there are other vacant buildings and commercial properties in need of 
rehabilitation.  He reminded the EDC that this is a twenty-three-year plan and includes 
Oakfield Center and the Crest Motel among other properties. 
 
Commissioner Erickson added that for meaningful redevelopment to happen in the area, 
that gas station property must be cleaned up.  Tony agreed that it is an eyesore and blight 
and good example of what this TIF is about. 
 
Commissioner Suffern asked how staff foresees the vacant gas station being rectified.  
Mr. Fradin stated that it would have to be foreclosed upon, and someone would take 
possession of it.  He noted that banks are not in a hurry to take possession of vacant fuel 
stations that may have contamination.  There are also tax buyers.  Whoever ultimately 
takes possession of it will have a line of people to compensate, which might ultimately 
make it a multimillion-dollar project. 
 
Commissioner Suffern asked if the site could become just a parking lot.  Mr. Fradin replied 
that it is a great gas station site and he gets calls on it.  Once investors learn of all the 



VILLAGE OF BARTLETT 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION MINUTES 

August 12, 2024 
              

 

   
  
VILLAGE OF BARTLETT EDC MINUTES  Page 3 of 4             EDC MEETING OF AUGUST 12, 2024 

issues and costs involved, they back off.  Ultimately, Mr. Fradin thinks it will become an 
automotive use once again at some point.  It might become part of a TIF-funded 
redevelopment. 
 
Mr. Fradin reminded the EDC that there will not be any TIF funds until there is some new 
development within the district, and that the developer of it will likely utilize the TIF for 
funding. 
 
Commissioner Lewensky commended other TIFs in the village and asked if this one is 
riskier.  Tony replied a strong Yes.  It is riskier.  The redevelopment area is still in Cook 
County.  It does not affect the tax bill that a developer would pay whether in a TIF or not.  
The difference is where the tax funds go, and the ability for a developer to recoup some 
extraordinary costs.  But compared with the industrial TIFs, this one will likely be more 
difficult and riskier to develop.  Tony further added that this is why it is a TIF.  It is a harder 
area to attract developers to than the DuPage County portion of Bartlett. 
 
Commissioner Suffern asked if a cannabis dispensary could go to this area.  Tony replied 
that it could, and we are also currently working with one to go inline in a Route 59 shopping 
center.   
 
Mr. Fradin continued; the goal is to lift the Lake Street corridor on the north end of town.  
Nobody wants higher taxes, but residents want higher property values, and I tell the many 
callers in the area that this will ultimately benefit the area including a higher quality of life.  
He noted that the Joint Review Board meeting was continued from last month to this 
month.  The taxing districts wanted more time to review the proposed TIF with their 
boards.  The JRB makes a non-binding recommendation to the village board, who will 
hold a public hearing on August 20th before forwarding the three ordinances to the Village 
Board for a vote. 
 
We are close to the end of the TIF creation process and will likely talk about the area at 
EDC meetings for coming years.   
 
Mr. Skrycki added that the village can utilize TIF funds to improve infrastructure including 
improved lighting and infrastructure in the area.  It is not just for attracting new business.  
 
Mr. Skrycki also noted that the plan allows for an Oak Avenue realignment, creating a 
new four-way stop, which will also be an attractive corner for new development.   
 
Commissioner Suffern asked if that has been talked about in the past, but never 
happened.  Tony replied Yes, this is part of the reason why we are creating the TIF.  The 
state owns a lot of property, and we have turned away potential developers over the years 
because some of the area was planned for a realignment.  There are state projects that 
have not moved forward, like the Elgin-O’Hare Expressway expansion, and we are 
working with IDOT to make more of this land available for development.   



VILLAGE OF BARTLETT 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION MINUTES 

August 12, 2024 
              

 

   
  
VILLAGE OF BARTLETT EDC MINUTES  Page 4 of 4             EDC MEETING OF AUGUST 12, 2024 

Commissioner Suffern stated that this corridor reflects the village’s image, and it should 
be an attractive corridor.  Tony stated that we all agree on that.  We want the Lake Street 
corridor to be another attractive corridor in Bartlett. 
 
Commissioner Suffern asked if the billboards would be staying.  Tony replied Yes, they 
were allowed to remain as part of the annexation agreement with the owner of what we 
refer to as the “triangle property.” 
 
Commissioner Suffern commended the village on being proactive in addressing this area. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS   
 
Commissioner Suffern asked about the proposed apartment building on Railroad Avenue.  
Mr. Fradin replied that the project went before the village board last week to address 
prevailing wages for two trades.  The Village Board did not amend the agreement, keeping 
them as prevailing wage.   
 
The zoning approval for the building was extended for one year.  Whether it moves 
forward or not remains to be seen.   
 
 
6. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion by Commissioner Gorski, second by Commissioner Perri 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:55 PM. 
 
 
 
Tony Fradin, Economic Development Coordinator 


